NEVADA FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

AGENDA AND NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

Tuesday, October 13, 2015, at 9:00a.m.
Video-Conference Locations:

Division of Employment Training and Rehabilitation
3405 S. Maryland Parkway, Main Conference Room
Las Vegas, Nevada
and
Division of Employment Training and Rehabilitation
1325 Corporate Blvd., Main Conference Room
Reno, Nevada

Please Note: The Board may 1) address agenda items out of sequence to
accommodate persons appearing before the Board or to aid the efficiency or
effectiveness of the meeting; 2) combine items for consideration by the public body; and
3) pull or remove items from the agenda at any time. The Board may convene in closed
session to consider the character, alleged misconduct, professional competence or
physical or mental health of a person. (NRS 241.030)

Public comment is welcomed by the Board, but at the discretion of the chair, may be
limited to five minutes per person. A public comment time will be available before any
action items are heard by the public body and then once again prior to adjournment of
the meeting. The Chair may allow additional time to be given a speaker as time allows
and in his/her sole discretion. Once all items on the agenda are completed the meeting
will adjourn. Prior to the commencement and conclusions of a contested case or a
quasi judicial proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the
board may refuse to consider public comment.

Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or table.

1. Call to order, roll call, establish quorum

2. Public comment

Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon
which action may be taken. (NRS 241.020)

10/1/2015 1



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

10/1/2015

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding review and
approval of minutes of meetings (For possible action)
a) July 14, 2015

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding Consent
Decrees for case number FB15-05 (For possible action)

a) LaPaloma Funeral Services LLC, Establishment Permit No. EST79

b) Ryan Bowen, Funeral Director License No. FD810

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding Consent
Decrees for case number FB15-03 (For possible action)

a) Lee Funeral Home, Establishment Permit No. EST2

b) Eric Jameson Lee, Funeral Director License No. FD611

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting
Funeral Director License to Carlen Sue Blansett (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting
Funeral Director License to Celena Leal DiLullo (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting
Funeral Director License to Christopher Robert Folger (For possible
action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting
Funeral Director License to Kyle Lamont Giddens (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting
Funeral Director License to Richard F. Glover (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting
Funeral Director License to David F. Holt (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a
Funeral Director License to John A. Horton (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a
Funeral Arranger License to Kimberly Ann Ireland-Oliver (For possible
action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting
Funeral Director License to Ernest E. Martinez (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting
Reciprocal Embalmer License to Ernest E. Martinez (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a
Funeral Director License to Angela Mercer (For possible action)

2



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29;

10/1/2015

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a
Funeral Director License to Denice Portillo (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a
Funeral Director License to Tamar Rae Robinson (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a
Funeral Director License to Marlene Jennett Shier (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding request for
approval of new managing Funeral Director (For possible action)
a) Cremation Society of Nevada — Affinity — Richard T. Hearn

b) Cremation Society of Nevada — John Sparks — Richard T. Hearn

c) Cremation Society of Nevada — Northern Nevada — Richard T. Hearn
d) National Cremation Service — Jaye MacPherson

e) Neptune Society - Reno — Tamar Robinson

f)  Sonoma Funeral Home — Marlene J. Shier

g) Sunrise Cremation — Kristen Anderson

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding review of the
following crematory operator certification course (For possible action)
a) Thermtec

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding approval of
Board refund policy (For possible action)

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding changes to
NAC 642 and NAC 451 (For possible action)

Financial Reports

a) Regulatory Fee Collection

b) FY2016 Budget vs. Actuals

Overview of current complaint status

Report from Executive Director, Jennifer Kandt
Report from Senior Deputy Attorney General

Board member comments

Discussion regarding future agenda items and future meeting dates
Meetings scheduled for the following dates:



30. Public comment

Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon
which action may be taken. (NRS 241.020)

31.  Adjournment (For possible action)

Anyone desiring additional information including meeting materials may contact Jennifer Kandt
at 775-825-5535. Meeting materials are also available for download from the Board website at
http://funeral.nv.gov or can be picked up at the following location: 501 Hammill Lane, Reno, NV.
The Board is pleased to make reasonable accommodations for members of the public who are
disabled and wish to attend the meeting. If special arrangements for the meeting are
necessary, please notify Jennifer Kandt at 775-825-5535, no later than 48 hours prior to the
meeting. Requests for special arrangements made after this time frame cannot be guaranteed.
This agenda has been sent to all members of the Board and other interested persons who have
requested an agenda from the Board. Persons who wish to continue to receive an agenda and
notice of meetings must request so in writing every six months.

THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PROPERLY NOTICED AND POSTED
IN THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS:

Reno City Hall
One E. First Street
Reno, NV 89501

Office of the Attorney General
100 N Carson Street
Carson City, NV 89701

555 E. Washington Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89101

Grant Sawyer State Office Building

Division of Employment Training
and Rehabilitation

3405 S. Maryland Parkway, Main
Conference Room
Las Vegas, Nevada

Funeral Board Office
501Hammill Lane
Reno, NV 89511

Division of Employment Training
and Rehabilitation
1325 Corporate Blvd., Main
Conference Room
Reno, Nevada

10/1/2015




State of Nevada -
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

501 Hammill Lane, Reno, NV 89511
Phone (775) 825-5535 * Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

| AGENDA ITEM 3a: Approval of Minutes

Approval of July 14, 2015 minutes requested.
Attachment: Draft Minutes




28

MINUTES OF MEETING

Tuesday, July 14, 2015, at 9:00a.m.
Video-Conference Locations:
Grant Sawyer Building
555 E. Washington Ave., Room 4412
Las Vegas, Nevada
and
Legislative Building
401 South Carson Street, Room 3138
Carson City, Nevada

Please Note: The Board may 1) address agenda items out of sequence to accommodate
persons appearing before the Board or to aid the efficiency or effectiveness of the meeting; 2)
combine items for consideration by the public body; and 3) pull or remove items from the
agenda at any time. The Board may convene in closed session to consider the character,
alleged misconduct, professional competence or physical or mental health of a person. (NRS
241.030)

Public comment is welcomed by the Board, but at the discretion of the chair, may be limited to
five minutes per person. A public comment time will be available before any action items are
heard by the public body and then once again prior to adjournment of the meeting. The Chair
may allow additional time to be given a speaker as time allows and in his/her sole discretion.
Once all items on the agenda are completed the meeting will adjoumn. Prior to the
commencement and conclusions of a contested case or a quasi judicial proceeding that may
affect the due process rights of an individual the board may refuse to consider public comment.

Action by the Board on an item may be to approve, deny, amend, or table.

1. Call to order, roll call, establish quorum
Members Present Board Staff Present
Wayne Fazzino, Chair Jennifer Kandt, Executive Director
Todd Noecker Henna Rasul, Senior Deputy AG

Tammy Dermody
Loretta Guazzini

Members Absent
Bart Burton

Jennifer stated that Wendy Simons had resigned several days prior to the meeting due
to taking on a new position. She stated that there were now two public positions open

10/5/2015 1



on the Board and that if anyone knew of anyone interested in serving on the Board,
they can apply with the Governor’s Office.

Public comment

Jennifer also stated that Gerald Hitchcock had been unable to attend this meeting, but
had provided written comments regarding his appointment to the NFDA Policy Board
and read comments as follows, “One of my goals is to establish an Association that
represents the industry in the state. One of the many benefits of the Association it will
allow members to gain continuing education easily and affordable. We will also be
able to provide the Crematory Operator Course and certification to our members here
in the state. Education programs will be held both in the North and South and | have
also worked out a program to be held in Elko to cover the Eastern part of the state.”

Note:

matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may
be taken. (NRS 241.020)

No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the

3.

10/5/2015

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding review and
approval of minutes of meetings (For possible action)

a) April 14, 2015

Tammy Dermody moved to approve the minutes. The motion was seconded by
Loretta Guazzini and carried unanimously.

Discussion regarding Southern Nevada Veteran’s Memorial Cemetery’s
concerns with Funeral Establishment communication and treatment of veterans
(For discussion only)

Chris Naylor, Superintendent of Southern Nevada Veterans Memorial Cemetery said
that there were various issues they were encountering with several of the funeral
establishments. He stated that many of the issues concern unaccompanied or
indigent Veterans services. He stated that many volunteers show up to give services
and render military honors for each individual, but that they are having issues with the
funeral homes arriving very late to the services and sometimes not showing up at all.
He stated that some funeral establishments will tell the family that their car broke
down, but they will tell the cemetery that they “forgot” to show up. He stated that he
felt the business practices of some of the funeral homes was unacceptable to our
Nation’s heroes. He also stated that he had discussed the issues with the Board
Executive Director who encouraged him to file complaints when this happens in the
future.

There was discussion that Mr. Naylor submit his concerns in writing, and those
concerns would be forwarded to all of the funeral establishments in the State of
Nevada.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding Consent Decrees
for case number FB15-02 (For possible action)

a) Sunrise Cremation and Burial, Establishment Permit No. EST73

Tammy Dermody stated that she did not feel that the discipline was adequate. Todd
Noecker agreed. Loretta Guazzini stated she also agreed as it was not as if this was
just a mistake that had been made.

Todd Noecker stated that he felt it would be appropriate to require a 12 month
probation with quarterly inspections paid by the establishment.

2



10.

1.

12.

10/5/2015

Todd Noecker moved to amend the Consent Decree to provide a 12 month probation
with quarterly inspections paid by the establishment. The motion was seconded by
Tammy Dermody and carried unanimously.

b) David Walters, Funeral Director License No. FD70

There was discussion that the discipline was not adequate, and that a 12 month
probation with additional continuing education was appropriate. Todd Noecker stated
that he would like to see 6 hours related to FTC and 6 hours related to ethics.

Tammy Dermody moved to amend the Consent Decree to add a 12 month probation
and require a six hour continuing education course related to the FTC and a six hour
continuing education course related to funeral ethics. The motion was seconded by
Loretta Guazzini and carried unanimously.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting Funeral
Director License to Kristen Elaine Anderson (For possible action)

Tammy Dermody moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Loretta Guazzini
and carried unanimously.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting Funeral
Director License to Geoffrey F. Chiara (For possible action)

Loretta Guazzini moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Todd Noecker and
carried unanimously.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting Reciprocal
Embalmer License to Jennifer Ann DiCamillo (For possible action)

Tammy Dermody moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Loretta Guazzini
and carried unanimously with Todd Noecker recusing as the applicant is an employee
of the same company.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a Funeral
Director License to Jennifer Ann DiCamillo (For possible action)

Loretta Guazzini moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Tammy Dermody
and carried unanimously with Todd Noecker recusing as the applicant is an employee
of the same company.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a Funeral
Director License to Joseph Michael Palmer (For possible action)

Todd Noecker moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Loretta Guazzini and
carried unanimously.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a Funeral
Director License to Nathan Robert Stiffler (For possible action)

Todd Noecker moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Tammy Dermody and
carried unanimously.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a Funeral
Director License to Michael Anthony Toth (For possible action)

Loretta Guazzini moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Tammy Dermody
and carried unanimously.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

10/5/2015

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a
Reciprocal Embalmer License to Amberly Angelique Walter (For possible action)
Loretta Guazzini moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Tammy Dermody
and carried unanimously.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding request for
approval of new managing Funeral Director (For possible action)

a) Palm Boulder Highway Mortuary - Joseph Michael Paimer

Todd Noecker moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Loretta Guazzini and
carried unanimously.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a Direct
Cremation Permit to Simple Cremation, 129 West Lake Mead Pkwy., Suite #21,
Henderson, Nevada 89015 (For possible action)

Tammy Dermody asked whether the direct cremation permits could be granted prior to
the effective date of the bill. Jennifer stated that she had spoken with legal counsel
and was advised that the Board could approve them as the bill was effective
immediately for the purposes of drafting regulations and administrative preparatory
work. She also stated that she was advised that the current “limited establishment”
licenses should be transitioned immediately as it needs to be clear that they do fall
under the jurisdiction of the Board.

Todd Noecker moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Loretta Guazzini and
carried unanimously.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding granting a Direct
Cremation Permit to National Cremation Society, 11 South Stephanie Street,
Suite 140, Henderson, Nevada 89012 (For possible action)

Loretta Guazzini moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Todd Noecker and
carried unanimously.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding approval of
temporary policy for approval of crematory operator certification courses and
review of the following crematory operator certification courses (For possible
action)

a) Cremation Association of North America (CANA)

b) International Crematory, Cemetery, and Funeral Association (ICCFA)

c) National Funeral Directors Association (NFDA)

Tammy Dermody moved to approve the courses. The motion was seconded by
Loretta Guazzini and carried unanimously.

Tammy Dermody moved to approve the temporary policies until the regulations are in
place. The motion was seconded by Loretta Guazzini and carried unanimously.

Warren Hardy stated that he would like the Board to accept current certifications from
manufacturers as the manufacturers come to the location and train the individuals on
site and that reduces costs. He requested a future agenda item to approve
manufacturer trainings.



18.

19.

20.

21.

Jennifer stated that the legislation states that the course must be “approved by the

Board” and that the Board had just approved a policy that they would allow courses

that met the following criteria:

1) At least six hours in length

2) Offered on a national level by experts in the field

3) Covers at a minimum, best practices, terminology, principles of combustion, basics
of equipment operation, and forms and record control.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding changes to NAC
642 and NAC 451 (For possible action)

Loretta asked about who had drafted the regulations. Jennifer stated that the
legislative subcommittee was comprised of Tammy Dermody, Bart Burton, Todd
Noecker, and John Lawrence. Jennifer stated that SB286 had passed, but that this
was approval of regulations to support SB286 and some general changes. Loretta
questioned the section about moving the funeral establishment to another location and
requiring approval for that process. Jennifer stated that the reason would be that an
inspection would need to be conducted of the new location. She also stated that
current laws already specified a fee for transferring a license or permit to another
location, but the process for doing so was not in place. She stated that if there are any
concerns with the regulations, now would be the time to voice the concerns. Jennifer
stated that there was still a long process involved with the regulatory changes as they
would need to be submitted to LCB, the Board would need to hold a workshop and a
hearing, and also do a small business impact statement. Tammy Dermody moved to
approve. The motion was seconded by Loretta Guazzini and carried unanimously.

Discussion, recommendation, and possible action regarding approval of
interlocal agreement for Deferred Compensation (For possible action)

Jennifer stated that this had been requested as part of the last meeting but that there
was not a clear motion for this item. She stated that this is no cost to the Board, but
allows Board employees to participate at their expense in a tax deferred retirement
place. Loretta Guazzini moved to approve. The motion was seconded by Tammy
Dermody and carried unanimously.

Financial Reports

a) Regulatory Fee Collection

Jennifer stated that she continues to send out quarterly letters for non-compliance with
submission of fees, and she presented the regulatory fee collection report to date.

b) FY2015 Budget vs. Actuals

Jennifer presented budget vs. actuals for FY2015 and stated that the audit process
would begin shortly.

Overview of current complaint status

Jennifer presented a report with a brief status of each complaint. She said that there was one
complaint still open from 2014.

22,

23.

24,

10/5/2015

Report from Executive Director, Jennifer Kandt
Jennifer presented a written report detailing current activities.

Report from Senior Deputy Attorney General
Henna Rasul stated that she had nothing to report.

Board member comments



25. Discussion regarding future agenda items and future meeting dates
Jennifer recommended that the Board consider a meeting in December due to
legislation taking effect January 1, 2016. The Board set the following meeting dates:
October 13, 2015
December 15, 2015

26. Public comment

Note: No vote may be taken upon a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the
matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action may
be taken. (NRS 241.020)

27. Adjournment (For possible action)

Meeting was adjourned at 10:50 a.m.

10/5/2015 6



State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

501 Hammill Lane, Reno, NV 89511
Phone (775) 825-5535 * Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

AGENDA ITEM 4: Consent Decrees for Case Number FB15-05

Attachment: Manila envelopes labeled 4a and 4b. Do not open until instructed to do so by legal

counsel.




State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

501 Hammill Lane, Reno, NV 89511
Phone (775) 825-5535 * Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

|

| AGENDA ITEM 5: Consent Decrees for Case Number FB15-03

Attachment: Manila envelopes labeled 5a and 5b. Do not open until instructed to do so by legal
counsel.




State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

501 Hammill Lane, Reno, NV 89511
Phone (775) 825-5535 * Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

AGENDA ITEMS 6-19: Licensing Items

Attachments:

See attached licensing items

6.

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Regarding granting Funeral Director License to Carlen Sue Blansett
Regarding granting Funeral Director License to Celena Leal DiLullo
Regarding granting Funeral Director License to Christopher Robert Folger
Regarding granting Funeral Director License to Kyle Lamont Giddens
Regarding granting Funeral Director License to Richard F. Glover
Regarding granting Funeral Director License to David F. Holt

Regarding granting a Funeral Director License to John A. Horton
Regarding granting a Funeral Arranger License to Kimberly Ann Ireland-Oliver
Regarding granting Funeral Director License to Ernest E. Martinez
Regarding granting Reciprocal Embalmer License to Ernest E. Martinez
Regarding granting Funeral Director License to Angela Mercer

Regarding granting Funeral Director License to Denice Portillo

Regarding granting a Funeral Director License to Tamar Rae Robinson

Regarding granting a Funeral Director License to Marlene Jennett Shier































State of Nevada
FUNERAL AND CEMETERY SERVICES BOARD

501 Hammill Lane, Reno, NV 89511
Phone (775) 825-5535 * Email nvfuneralboard@fb.nv.gov

 AGENDA ITEM 23: Draft Regulation Changes

Initial draft changes were approved at the July 14, 2015 meeting as recommended by the Legislative
Subcommittee. Changes were sent to LCB and they have been returned as LCB File No. R067-15.
Several additional changes for review and possible changes noted below. Regulations will still
require workshop, hearing, and small business impact.

1)
2)
3)

4)

S)
6)

Page 10 - See highlighted section

Page 11 — See highlighted section

Page 16 — In section 32, item 3 was revised in a way which altered the intention of the
regulation. Original language submitted stated the following:

The practice of funeral directing shall NOT be construed to consist of the following:

(a) Removing or transporting human remains from the place of death, or removing or
transporting human remains from or to a funeral establishment, cemetery, crematory, medical
examiner’s office, common camier, or other locations as authorized and provided by law.
Page 21 — NAC 642.160 — This section was originally going to be repealed in favor of an
amendment to NAC 451.100. LCB advised that the Board can add sections to NAC 451, but
cannot amend the current sections (only the State Board of Health can amend those
sections). Recommend the changes to NAC 642.160, and work with State Board of Health to
repeal NAC 451.100.

Further discussion needed on Moral Character on page 5 and 6.

Add section regarding cremation of human remains pursuant to 451.680

stating that the crematory shall knowingly cremate only human remains in cremation
chambers, along with the cremation container, personal effects of the deceased, and no more
than a negligible amount of chlorinated plastic which may be attached to or accompanying the
body.

7) Add section regarding expiration of applications to state that an application is deemed to

8)

expired and automatically withdrawn if it is not complete within 3 years.

Add section regarding interpretation of “physically operating crematory equipment” as follows:
Physically operating crematory equipment shall be interpreted as including the following:

a) Loading the chamber

b) Starting the equipment

c) Sweeping the chamber

d) Processing the remains




































































































































